Date: August 15, 2022 - Time: 6:00 PM

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

- 1. June Minutes
 - Minutes 7-18-22.pdf

Finance Reports

- 2. Budget thru June
 - Parks Committee Finance Report June.pdf

Director's Report

3. Progress Report

Parks Department progress using the 2016 U of A study as a bench mark

Public Comments

Old Business

New Business

4. Historical Society Program Agreement

Discuss the potential of partnering with the Bryant Historical Society to provide historical education programming at 300 SW 3rd. St.

• Bryant Historic Society Agreement Draft.pdf

Adjournments

BRYANT PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA MINUTES July 18, 2022 at 6:00 p.m.

Call to order

In attendance: Amanda Jolly, Jason Whittington, Jordan O'Roark, Renee Curtis, Spencer McCorkel

Others: Chris Treat, Keith Cox, Stacey Reynolds, Mayor Allen Scott, Council Member Rhonda Sanders.

Approval of minutes – MM2 ORoark, Spencer McCorkel June 2022 Motion Passed Unanimously.

Finance Report – Keith Cox went over the finance report noting Bishop membership, rentals, programming revenues pre & post COVID shutdown. He also pointed out the effect of early year membership sales in 2018 & 19 on the revenue numbers. The revenue comes in evenly throughout the year now instead of a bump at the beginning of the year. The membership revenues are slowly increasing back to 18-19 levels.

Cox presented information on the youth sports tourism events of the summer. He went over the reasoning behind the amount of events in the summer, the 2022 schedule, the avg visitors per day, and economic impact.

Directors Report -

Treat presented the schedule for outreach meetings to get feedback for the comprehensive plan.

Adjourn – MM2 Whittington, Curtis

Parks Finance Report

January - June 2022

Revenues

Park	Account	Account Description	2022 Budget	2022 Actual	2021 YTD	Year-over-Year
General	R62	Sales Tax Transfer	\$1,336,126	\$668,064	\$574,998	16.19%
	R66	Sale of Equipment	\$0	\$2,120	N/A	N/A
Mills	R50	Sale of Services	\$71,000	\$50,457	\$39,223	28.64%
Midland	R74	Use Agreement Fees	\$74,000	\$64,225	\$12,875	398.83%
Bishop	R30	Memberships	\$370,000	\$107,710	\$83,356	29.22%
	R33	Rentals/Participation Fees	\$150,995	\$82,728	\$58,932	40.38%
	R36	Programming	\$156,000	\$56,759	\$49,854	13.85%
	R50	Sale of Services	\$102,000	\$66,110	\$47,664	38.70%
	R60	Miscellaneous Revenue	\$5,000	\$1,930	\$5,347	-63.90%
	R74	Sponsorships	\$98,500	\$36,267	\$31,654	14.57%
Alcoa	R36	Parks Rental	\$1,000	\$840	\$126	568.84%
	R74	Use Agreement Fees	\$5,000	\$0	\$0	N/A
Ashley	R36	Parks Rental	\$5,000	\$3,450	\$2,567	34.40%
		Total	\$2,374,621	\$1,140,660	\$906,596	25.82%

Expenses

Park	Account	Account Description	2022 Budget	2022 Actual	Available
General	E01	Personnel Expense	\$843,301	\$394,142	53.26%
	E10	Insurance & Tools	\$3,526	\$1,837	47.90%
	E20	Vehicle Expense	\$30,133	\$15,825	47.48%
	E30	Postage Expense	\$600	\$154	74.33%
	E40	Sales Tax Expense	\$1,000	\$1,628	-62.80%
	E55	Professional Services	\$35,550	\$15,535	56.30%
	E60	IT Expense	\$18,105	\$14,691	18.86%
	E72	Amendment 78 Loans	\$71,993	\$52,616	26.92%
	E80	Fixed Assets - Vehicles/Equipment	\$23,000	\$19,756	14.10%
	E85	Interest Expense	\$2,039	\$2,222	-8.97%
Mills	E01	Personnel Expense	\$24,759	\$5,782	76.65%
	E10	Building & Grounds Exp.	\$30,770	\$16,906	45.06%
	E30	Pool Supplies	\$15,500	\$4,667	69.89%
	E80	Fixed Assets - Infrastructure	\$375,000	\$0	100.00%
Midland	E10	Building & Grounds Exp.	\$49,124	\$19,089	61.14%
	E80	Fixed Assets - Infrastructure	\$344,500	\$77,500	77.50%
Bishop	E01	Personnel Expense	\$736,879	\$392,788	46.70%
	E10	Building & Grounds Exp.	\$615,158	\$359,395	41.58%
	E20	Service & Repair	\$20,000	\$6,901	65.50%
	E30	Supply Expense	\$57,500	\$44,501	22.61%
	E40	Operations Expense	\$29,623	\$15,698	47.01%
	E55	Professional Services	\$129,720	\$62,337	51.94%
	E60	Miscellaneous	\$4,900	\$303	93.82%
	E80	Fixed Assets	\$81,225	\$66,266	18.42%
Alcoa	E10	Building & Grounds Exp.	\$19,556	\$9,792	49.93%
Ashley	E80	Building & Grounds Exp.	\$11,000	\$782	92.89%
		Total	\$3,574,461	\$1,601,113	55.21%

Bryant Parks and Recreation Department 2022 Program Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on	, 2022 by and between the City of Bryant
Parks and Recreation Department, a department of the City of Bryant	doing business at 210 S.W. 3rd Street, Bryant,
Arkansas (hereinafter called "THE CITY"), and Bryant Historic Society	y, ???????, Bryant, Arkansas (hereinafter called
"BHS").	

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, THE CITY owns property at 300 SW 3rd St. Bryant, Arkansas, and;

WHEREAS, the use of said property for the purpose of a historical museum has been considered the best use of this property for recreational purpose to better service the citizens of Bryant, Arkansas.

WHEREAS, THE CITY provides and maintains certain recreational programs, facilities and parks in Bryant, and;

WHEREAS, BHS provides program administration and operations of the historical education programs in Bryant;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and promises set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

THE CITY agrees to grant use of 300 SW 3rd as outlined herein to BHS for the operation of historical education programming beginning on January 1, 2023 and ending on December 31, 2023. The named property will be used by BHS for programs and events provided to the City.

- 1. For a period not to exceed fifty years, BHS shall be permitted to use, upon payment of an annual fee of \$1.00 which also covers the cost of monthly utilities (i.e. electricity and water/sewer expense), said facilities in sole consideration for the programs and services BHS provides to the City. Such Programs and services shall be operated in accordance with such guidelines as BHS shall determine to be appropriate. THE CITY will provide maintenance of the facilities in like manner and consistent with the support extended to other associations operating on City property and for performance of programs and services, including building maintenance for normal wear and tear to the area of the Community Center utilized by BHS, the City agrees to allow BHS use of 300 SW 3rd, including utilities associated with said usage. Building maintenance by the City does not include repairs for property damage caused by BHS or its visitors.
- 2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the annual use of the premises shall continue until notification as provided in Section 15 below is given to end the terms of this agreement.
- 3. BHS shall maintain insurance in amounts required by federal or state laws and hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City from any claims, lawsuits, judgments, or settlements brought as a result of the performance of this Agreement or BGC's provision of services hereunder.
- 7. The parties agree that THE CITY shall have no authority to direct the day-to-day activities of any BHS's employees, shall have no authority over BHS's personnel decision, or the conduct of the services and programs provided.
- 8. It is agreed that THE CITY has no financial interest in the business of BHS and shall not be liable for any debts or obligations incurred by BGC, nor shall THE CITY be deemed or construed to be a partner, joint

Page 1 of 4
City of Bryant and Bryant Historical Society Use Agreement
EXHIBIT "A" to Resolution 2020-___

venture or otherwise interested in the assets of the BHS, or profits earned or derived by the BHS, nor shall BHS at any time or times use the name or credit of THE CITY in purchasing or attempting to purchase any equipment, supplies, or other thing or things whatsoever.

- 9. BHS, in the performance of its operation and obligations hereunder, shall be deemed to be an independent contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own expense as THE CITY may from time to time request to indicate that BHS is an independent contractor. THE CITY does not and will not assume any responsibility for the means by which or manner in which service by BHS shall be wholly responsible therefore.
- 10. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Contract or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Use Agreement as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional.
- 11. In the event of any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be construed for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the same.

The general conditions of this program agreement will be:

- 1. BHS will operate programs in accordance to nondiscrimination requirements of *Title VI* of the 1964 Civil Rights Act.
- 2. It is agreed that the program for which this agreement is written must be made available to the general public to join and participate in. It is also agreed that the party sponsoring any community recreation program will furnish and supply all expendable materials necessary for conducting the program.
- 3. It is further agreed that program personnel must adhere to all provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) that apply to a particular program.
- 4. Program personnel and participants agree to abide by all Federal, State, and Local laws in addition to the policies of THE CITY pertaining to parks and facilities.
- 5. It is understood that THE CITY will not be liable for any injuries incurred by participants who are participating in activities on or in THE CITY facility. BGC shall indemnify and hold THE CITY, the City of Bryant, and all of its employees harmless against losses, claims, causes of action, and liabilities on account of damage to property or injury to or death of persons arising out of negligent acts by BHS, its agents, employees, or program participants
- 6. It is agreed that the named facility, area, or property may not be assigned, subleased, rented, reserved or loaned to any other group, business, individual, or entity by BGC without prior approval by THE CITY for any rental, assignment or subleased for any period longer than five (5) hours.
- 7. No alterations, changes, or modifications to change the intended use may be made to facilities by BGC, without first receiving written approval from THE CITY. The BHS must submit a detailed request in writing to THE CITY.
- 8. BHS assumes full responsibility and liability for damage caused by participants of their programs. Any

damage caused will be fixed by BHS. If the repair is neglected for a long period of time THE CITY will make the necessary repairs and bill BHS.

- 9. BHS must inspect facilities prior to each use. If damage is discovered to equipment or the facility that poses an immediate hazard or danger then BGC must immediately notify THE CITY. Damaged equipment or facility that does not pose a danger or hazard should be discussed with THE CITY. BHS must report any vandalism or theft to THE CITY within 24 (twenty-four) hours or next business day.
- 10. Two keys will master keys be given to the Director of the BHS. The BHS will provide the parks director with door codes and key fobs.
- 11. BHS agrees to return this agreement signed by the appropriate persons, and any and all additional requested material.
- 12. BHS agrees to provide a list of any bulk chemicals used and/or stored at the facility during their program agreement if applicable. This list must include a MSDS for each chemical listed and BHS must insure that each chemical is properly stored according to MSDS specifications. THE CITY must be made aware of the intention to use any form of chemical prior to its use or storage in the facility.
- 13. Additional conditions to be agreed upon not previously listed:
 - A. BHS will control all litter by picking up litter their program creates. The litter must be placed in the proper receptacle by BHS and then be removed on a regular basis by THE CITY contracted trash service. If excessive litter must be picked up after 24 hours of the program by THE CITY, BHS will be charged \$10 for each individual man hour worked.
 - B. BHS will provide proper insurance for the programs they will be operating on city property. Proof of insurance must be attached to this program agreement. BHS understands that their program participants are in no way covered by insurance by THE CITY.
 - C. BHS will pay for weather damage to water lines, pumps, etc. if the BHS requests that the water be turned on before THE CITY deems acceptable due to weather conditions.
 - D. BHS must contact THE CITY prior to any digging in the park area. The extensive under ground wiring must be marked by THE CITY and One Call before any digging can begin. If this procedure is not followed and as a result any lines in the park are damaged, BHS will be responsible to pay for the cost of any and all repairs to the damaged lines.
 - E. BHS will submit contact person(s) for after-business-hour emergencies. List responsibility of the person submitted.
 - F. At the request of THE CITY, BHS will remove all their equipment at the completion of this agreement period.
 - G. BHS will insure that their employees or participants do not attempt to operate equipment belonging to THE CITY.

- 14. Either Party may terminate this Use Agreement by providing a 60 day written notice of its intent to not renew this agreement. Any such notice must be made 60 days but no more than 90 days prior to the end of any annual term of this agreement. Thus the period to notify a party's intent to cancel this agreement must be submitted in October of the calendar year for which the party wishes to terminate the agreement for the following fiscal year.
- 15. Other specific agreements or assurance:
- A. Permanent improvements to facilities and fields will become property of THE CITY. Permanent fixtures include, but are not limited to all: concrete work, fences, underground installations, sprinkler heads, structural work, lighting fixtures, etc...
- B. Non-permanent improvements will be retained by BHS and include: appliances, equipment, concession equipment, portable buildings, and etc... which were purchased by BHS.

16. For Annual Programs-

- A. A program agreement must be signed annually in order to guarantee use of a facility or area. THE CITY will provide at least a 60 day notice prior to the end of the term of this agreement of the City's intent to cancel, modify or otherwise change the terms of this Use Agreement. Any changes in programs of uses by BHS will be provided to THE CITY via a written notice provided at least 30 days prior to any such change in program or use of the facilities governed under this Use Agreement. BHS shall notify THE CITY no later than 60 days nor more than 90 days prior to the end of any annual term of this agreement of BHS's intent to discontinue use of the facilities and/or its intent to vacate the facilities provided for herein.
- B. Either party may amend this agreement when deemed necessary, but any amendment, alteration or change in this agreement, other than as provided for in paragraph 15 above, will only be affective by the mutual assent of both parties and will be effective when reduced to writing signed by both parties and attached to this original agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in their behalf and supersede any and/or all previous agreements, contracts, or leases.

CITY OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS	Bryant Historical Society
Mover Allen Coett	Duncidant
Mayor Allen Scott	President,
Attest:	
Mark Smith, City Clerk	
	Daga 4 of 4